
 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Monday, February 6, 2023 — 2:00 P.M. 

 
The VCMWD Board of Directors welcomes the public back to its Board Room in a limited 
capacity while still accommodating remote participation options. Seating inside the 
Board Room will be spaced to accommodate social distancing, with an option to listen 
to the meetings on speakers outside of the Board Room. Our Board Meetings will also 
continue to be livestreamed for those who wish to observe remotely.  Please be advised 
that one or more members of the VCMWD Board of Directors or staff may participate in 
this meeting by teleconference consistent with Assembly Bill 361. 
 
Instructions for members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors:   
 

Members of the public who wish to address the Board of Directors under “Audience Comments/ 
Questions” or on specific agenda items, may do so as instructed below.  All comments will be 
subject to a limit of three (3) minutes. 
 

• Making Public Comment for Those Attending In-Person:  Members of the public who wish 
to observe or to address the Board may join the Board Members at the noticed, physical 
location. A Request to Speak slip is required to be submitted to the Board Secretary prior 
to start of the meeting (if possible). 

• Phone Comments During the Meeting: Before the meeting, or before public comment period 
for the item closes during the meeting, submit a telephone number by email to the Board 
Secretary at publiccomments@vcmwd.org, together with the agenda item number, and the 
Board Secretary will call when the board is ready to hear public comments;  or 

• Emailed Comments: Before the meeting, or before public comment period for that                      
item closes at the meeting, e-mail your comments to the Board Secretary at 
publiccomments@vcmwd.org and the Board Secretary and it will be read aloud at the  
public comment period; or 

• Written Comments: Written comments can be also be physically dropped off in advance of 
the meeting at the District’s Administrative Office or mailed in advance of the meeting to 
29300 Valley Center Rd., Valley Center, CA 92082, for receipt no later than 1:00 pm on the 
meeting day. 

These public comment procedures supersede the District’s standard public comment policies 
and procedures to the contrary. If modifications or accommodations from individuals with 
disabilities are required, such persons should provide a request at least 24 hours in advance 
of the meeting by email to the Board Secretary at kperaino@vcmwd.org. 
 

Meeting Broadcast: Members of the public may watch the meeting electronically by visiting the 
District’s website at vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents and then clicking the link listed below 
“live stream” on the page. 
 

Meeting Documents: Board Meeting Packets (except for closed session materials) will be made 
available to the public once distributed to the Board. Please visit the District’s website at 
vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents for Agenda and related Board Meeting Documents.  
 

mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org
mailto:kperaino@vcmwd.org
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents
http://vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents


Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  2 February 6, 2023 

ROLL CALL 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 

At its option, the Board may approve the agenda, delete an item, reorder items and add an item to 
the agenda per the provisions of Government Code §54954.2. 

 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS/QUESTIONS 
 

Comments and inquiries from the audience will be received on any matter not on the agenda, but 
within the jurisdiction of the Board. Comments and inquiries pertaining to an item on the agenda 
will be received during the deliberation of the agenda item (Government Code §54954.3). 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Consent calendar items will be voted on together by a single motion unless separate action is 
requested by a Board member, staff or member of the audience. 
 

1. Make Findings Necessary to Continue Teleconferenced Board Meetings Pursuant to AB 361; 

2. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Tuesday, January 17, 2023; and 

3. Audit Demands.  

 
ACTION AGENDA 

 

4. Request Approval of Change Order No. 3 to the Construction Contract with GSE 
Construction, Inc. (GSE) and Amendment No. 14 to the Professional Services 
Agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR) for the Orchard Run Lift Station Project: 
 

Adoption of Resolution No. 2023-02, approving Change Order No. 3 to the construction 
contract with GSE for additional asphalt paving services and Resolution No. 2023-03 approving 
Amendment No. 14 to the professional services agreement with HDR to include additional 
monitoring services needed to complete the project based on the contractor’s progress and 
modified completion schedule for the Orchard Run Lift Station Project, will be requested. 
 

a. Report by District Engineer 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 

d. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2023-02 
e. If desired, motion to approve or deny Resolution No. 2023-03 
 

5. Review Corporate Facility Needs Assessment Update and Preview of New Alternate 
Concept:  
 

The Board will be presented with an update on the Corporate Facility Needs Assessment and 
introduce an alternate concept for further consideration. 

 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Obtain Board input on the proposal to evaluate the Corporate Facility Development Alternative 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  3 February 6, 2023 

GENERAL MANAGER’S AGENDA 
 

6. San Diego County Water Authority’s Board Meeting Summary: 
 

A report on the San Diego County Water Authority’s Board of Directors’ Meeting of January 
26, 2023 will be provided. 

 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
7. General Information: 
 

General Informational items will be reviewed. 
 

a. Report by General Manager 
b. Discussion 
c. Audience comments/questions 
d. Information item only, no action required 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S AGENDA 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA AND REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

 

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider 
litigation, personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client 
privilege. Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in closed 
session.  Authority: Government Code §54956.9. 

 
8. Two Closed Sessions will be held pursuant to: 
 

(a) Government Code §54957 ─ Public Employee Performance Evaluation: 

Unrepresented Employee:      General Manager 

 

(b) Government Code §54957.6 ─ Conference with Labor Negotiators: 

Agency Designated Representatives: Board of Directors 
 Unrepresented Employee:                     General Manager 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda 

 

  4 February 6, 2023 

 
 

 
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: 
 

This agenda was posted at least 72 hours before the meeting in a location freely accessible to           
the public. No action may be taken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as 
provided by Gov. Code §54954.2. Any written materials provided to a majority of the Board of 
Directors within 72 hours prior to the meeting regarding any item on this agenda will be available for 
public inspection on the District’s website. The agenda and related Board Documents are available 
for public review on the District’s website, http://www.vcmwd.org/Board/Board-Documents.  
 

For questions or request for information related to this agenda contact Kirsten Peraino, Board 
Secretary, at (760) 735-4517 or publiccomments@vcmwd.org. Upon request, this agenda will be 
made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
Section 202 of the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability who requires 
a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to 
the Board Secretary at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible. 

 

 
— End of Agenda — 

http://www.vcmwd.org/
mailto:publiccomments@vcmwd.org


February 6, 2023 
 
 

TO:  Honorable President and Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Gary T. Arant, General Manager 
 

SUBJECT:   MAKE FINDINGS NECESSARY TO CONTINUE TELECONFERENCED BOARD  
MEETINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361   

   
PURPOSE: 
 

Approve a motion making findings necessary to continue holding remote/teleconferenced Board 
Meetings pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 (AB 361). 
 
 

SUMMARY: 
 

The Brown Act generally allows for Board members to join a meeting by teleconference, provided 
that the physical locations of the Board members joining by teleconference are posted on the 
agenda, that those locations are open to the public to attend and participate in the meeting, and 
that a quorum of the members is participating from within the agency’s boundaries. Since March 
2020 and the issuance of Executive Order N-29-20, executed on March 17, 2020, which 
suspended certain portions of the Brown Act relating to teleconferencing at the outset of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, the Board has held fully or partially virtual meetings without having to post 
the location of the Board members attending remotely, while also allowing members of the public 
to attend and participate in the meeting remotely.  In June 2021, Governor Newsom issued 
Executive Order N-08-21, which provided that certain provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 
would be withdrawn and certain provision regarding public meetings would be extended. On 
September 15, 2021, Governor Newsom signed AB 361 into law.   
 

AB 361 provides an exception to the standard Brown Act teleconferencing procedures in order 
to allow for fully or partially virtual meetings during proclaimed emergencies, without posting 
each Board member’s teleconference location on the agenda or requiring other standard 
Brown Act teleconferencing procedures. Finally, Executive Order N-15-21, executed on 
September 20, 2021, set forth the method of securing initial compliance with AB 361. 
 

Circumstances Under Which Agencies May Use AB 361: 
 

Under Government Code section 54953(e), which was adopted by AB 361 (copy attached), the 
Board can hold meetings without providing notice of the body’s teleconference locations other 
standard Brown Act teleconferencing procedures if there is a Governor-proclaimed State of 
Emergency (Executive Order N-15-21, executed March 20, 2020 extended by Executive Order 
N-08-21, executed June 11, 2021) and one of two secondary criteria listed below still exists:  
 

1. The legislative body determines that requiring a meeting in person would present an 
imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees; or 

2. State or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing 
(“Health Officer Teleconferencing Recommendation,” executed by Wilma Wooten, 9/23/21).  

 

Currently, the Governor’s declaration of a COVID-19 State of Emergency remains in effect.  
Further, state and local health officials continue to recommend or require social distancing, 
particularly under certain circumstances, including individuals who have recently tested positive 
for COVID-19 or been in close proximity to a person who has tested positive for COVID-19. In 





























































































 

VALLEY CENTER MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

    Regular Board Meeting 
    TUESDAY, January 17, 2023 − 2:00 P.M. 
   Place: Board Room  
    29300 Valley Center Road;  Valley Center, CA  92082

  
The Valley Center Municipal Water District Board of Directors’ meeting was called to 
order by President Polito at 2:00 PM, via teleconference and in-person.  President Polito 
established for the record that all Directors were able to hear the proceedings, that all members 
of the Board were able to hear the Directors participating remotely clearly, and that all votes 
were taken by a roll call vote pursuant to the provisions of the Brown Act.  The meeting was 
also livestreamed. 

 
ROLL CALL 
 

Board Members Present: President Polito, Vice President Ferro, and Director Ness (present in-
person); with Director Holtz teleconferencing.  
 

Board Members Absent:  Director Smith. 
 

Staff Members Present: General Manager Arant, Director of IT Pilve, District Engineer Grabbe, 
Director of Finance and Administration Pugh, Director of Operations and Facilities Lovelady, 
Manager of Accounting Velasquez, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary Peraino, Project Manager 
Carrillo, General Counsel de Sousa, and Federal Consultant Howells (HGR) present in-person. 

 
CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 

Agenda Item No. 14 (closed session) was pulled, and will be brought back at an upcoming Regular 
Board Meeting. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS / QUESTIONS 
 

President Polito established for the record the process by which public comments are received by 
the Board; this process was also described in the Agenda for the meeting. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR  

  

1. Findings Made Necessary to Continue Teleconferenced Board Meetings Pursuant to AB 361; 

2. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Tuesday, January 3, 2023; 

3. Audit Demands for Check Nos. 165070 ─ 165173 from December 23, 2022 ─ January 5, 
2023 and Wire Disbursements for the month of December 2022;                                             

4. Expense Reimbursement Disclosures (Oct. 1 – Dec. 31, 2022) per GC §53065.5; and 

5. Treasurer’s Report for Month Ending November 30, 2022.  
 

Action: Upon motion by Ferro, seconded by Ness, and unanimously carried, the previously 
listed consent calendar items were approved. 

 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

2 January 17, 2023 

ACTION AGENDA 
 

6. MWD Rate Litigation Attorney Fees Award – Update on the Disposition of Funds and 
Consideration of Staff Recommendation: 
 

A brief background on the MWD Litigation Damages Award was provided by General Manager 
Arant. At its May 26, 2022 meeting, the SDCWA Board elected to refund $10,449,112.78 of 
the $14,649,112.78 awarded to its member agencies, with the difference, $4.2M, to be retained 
by the SDCWA to fund ongoing litigation for fiscal year (FY) 2022-23. In total, SDCWA 
refunded $90,694,138.77 to its member agencies, of which $2,328,456.10 has been returned 
to VCMWD. As with the past refunds related to the litigation, the Board is to determine the 
disposition of the funds. The first refund ($1,332,447.35) was directed fund the District’s CIP 
and the second refund ($682,215.91) was used to reduce the unfunded liability in the District’s 
OPEB program. 
 

The following options for dispensation of the MWD Litigation Award were presented: (1) Use 
for a rate rebate/refund to District customers; (2) Use for one-time capital improvement 
projects/investments; (3) Pay toward the CalPERS and/or OPEB unfunded liability; or (4) Place 
in the District’s Operating Reserve for future use.  
 

Mr. Arant reminded the Board of the concerns expressed by staff at the June 20, 2022 Regular 
Board Meeting. These concerns have remained unchanged since the item was initially brought 
to the Board, and include:  
 

• Governor had stated that without an adequate response Executive Order N-7-22, then 
statewide mandatory reductions may be ordered, with a negative effect on water sales-
related revenues for FY 2022-23; 

• Impacted by inflation in labor, materials, equipment, and outside services; 

• Predictions of a potential recession by the end of 2022 or early next year and its impact on 
general economic activity and build-out of ongoing development can impact anticipated 
revenue, such as meter sales and capacity fees, for the upcoming FY 2022-23 period; 

• The current refund represented 7.2% of the local commodity water sales revenue, 
$4,358,000 anticipated for FY 2022-23 and could serve offset the financial impacts of a 
mandatory reductions; and 

• The $313,768.93 refund represented 2.1% of the District local fixed operating costs 
projected in the FY 2022-23 of $14,666,584 and could serve to cushion against additional 
inflationary impacts. 

 

Added to these concerns is the fact that for the first 6 months of Fiscal ‘22-’23 water demand 
and related revenue is down 22%, as was discussed with the Board at the January 3, 2023 
regular meeting. With the same concerns as when initially presented to the Board, staff 
recommended deferring action on the disposition of the third refund and directing the funds be 
placed in the District’s Operating Reserve, with disposition reevaluated after the conclusion of 
the 2022-23 fiscal year. At that time Board and staff should understand more about the 
potential mandatory drought response, impacts of inflation, and the general condition of the 
state’s economy, stated Mr. Arant. 
 

Action:   Upon motion by Ferro, seconded by Ness; Staff’s Recommendation to defer action 
to the end of FY 2022-23, and further retain the funds in the District’s Operating 
Reserve is approved with four (4) affirmative votes. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

3 January 17, 2023 

INFORMATIONAL AGENDA 
 

7. Review of Preliminary Findings for the Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility 
Master Plan 2023 Update: 

 

A report on the status of the Lower Moosa Canyon Water Reclamation Facility (“Moosa”) 
Master Plan 2023 Update was provided by District Engineer Grabbe.  The Master Plan Update 
will identify projects proposed for completion within the next five to ten years to replace critical 
infrastructure that has reached the end of its service life or operational efficiency.  In addition, 
the master plan update will evaluate the service area needs and identify capacity requirements 
for a 20-year planning horizon. Preliminary results indicated that overall customer water 
conservation efforts have reduced per unit flow rates.  These reduced flow rates hydraulically 
allow the existing facilities to treat more.  However, the reduced flows come with higher 
concentrations of solids along with increased in aeration and solids handling requirements.  
The existing facilities were determined to have sufficient capacity for the growth anticipated 
over the 20-year planning horizon 
 

Mr. Grabbe stated that the proposed projects are categorized into five groups, Continuing 
Projects, and Priority Projects 1 through 4.  The total anticipated cost for the proposed Capital 
Improvement Program is $9.7M.  The Continuing Projects are currently funded and have a 
remaining budget of $967K.  The Priority 1 Projects are estimated at $500K and are proposed 
for inclusion in the FY 2023-2024 Annual Budget.  Priority Projects 2 through 4 are estimated 
at a total of $8.2M for construction in FY’s 2025 through 2029.  These projects will be funded 
through State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loans leveraging the Moosa net revenues, leaving $150K 
available for annual contribution to the replacement reserves for equipment replacement, 
collection line repairs and other minor upgrade and replacement improvements, as needed.  
The estimated cumulative annual debt service requirements for Priority 2 through Priority 4 
Projects is $500K.  Depending on the currently level of annual contributions to the replacement 
reserve this level of debt service requirement could require up to a 4.5% annual increase in 
sewer service charges over a 7-year period over and above any normal rate increases 
recommended for annual inflationary increases in the rising costs of operation expenses. 
 

Continuing Projects have a current budget of $967K for FY 2022-23 and are anticipated to 
be funded from replacement reserves. The Continuing Projects will consist of: 
 

• Aeration Piping Replacement ($150K); 

• Clarifier No. 1 Mechanical Components Replacement ($195K); 

• Headworks Modifications ($138K), staff recommends combining with proposed Priority 2 
Projects; and 

• Meadows Lift Station MCC Replacement ($484K). 
 

Priority 1 Projects have a total estimated cost of $500K for FY 2023-24 funded from a 
combination of replacement reserves and short-term interim funding from the General Fund, 
to be repaid over 3-5 years (pending available net revenues). Priority 1 Projects consist of: 
 

• Influent Channel Slide Gate ($10K);  

• Discharge Line Appurtenance Replacement ($15K); 

• Clarifier No. 2 Mechanical Component Replacement ($350K); 

• Chlorine Contact Tank & Plant Washwater System ($25K); 

• SRF Application for Priority 2 Projects ($50K); and 

• Priority 2 Project Preliminary Design ($50K). 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

4 January 17, 2023 

Mr. Grabbe reported that the Moosa facility receives sludge from the Woods Valley Ranch 
Wastewater Reclamation Facility (“WVR”) for dewatering and disposal.  This additional sludge 
loading is starting to stress the capacity of the digestor at the Moosa facility.  Previous 
preliminary recommendations included adding sludge thickening equipment at Moosa, 
however, after further consideration the recommendation is being revised to install the sludge 
thickening equipment at WVR.  This will reduce hauling costs for WVR and reduce the stress 
on the Moosa digestor.  If the Moosa facility is to continue processing the WVR sludge, WVR 
should be responsible for additional sludge processing charges. The installation of sludge 
thickening Equipment at the WVR is estimated at $675K and would be considered for inclusion 
in the FY 2023-2024 Annual Budget. 
  

Priority 2 Projects have a budget of $2.9M for partial replacement of pre-treatment processes: 

• Diversion Structure to Divert Influent to Influent Lift Station Improving Operation of Influent 
Flow Meter; 

• Influent Lift Station with Flow Equalization; 

• Replacement of Electrical Panel CP-200 at RAS/WAS Pump Station; and 

• Modifications to the WAS Pumps and minor RAS/WAS Pump Station Access. 
 

Priority 3 Projects have a $3.2M budget for partial replacement of the existing pre-treatment 
and headworks processes with the following: 

• Forcemain Replacement from the Influent Lift Station to the Headworks area, (includes 
Influent Bypass that utilizes existing facilities for redundancy); 

• Rotary Drum Screens; 

• Grit Removal; and 

• Splitter Box tie-in to the existing Influent Channel. 
 

Priority 4 Projects have a $2.1M budget for secondary treatment processes: 

• Aeration Tank Retrofit (includes Replacement of Coatings, Removal of Failed Basin Intertie 
Gate, and Add Aeration to Effluent Channel); 

• Secondary Clarifier Influent Channel Improvements (Replace Existing Pipe with Grate 
Covered Channel for Improved Access for Cleaning/Repair); and 

• Replacement of Existing Blower. 
 

Mr. Grabbe concluded his presentation by reviewing the next steps, which included: incorporating 
Board and staff comments into the Master Plan Update, finalizing projections and cost 
estimates, completing the Master Plan document, preparing recommendation for Board 
adoption, preparing the application for SRF for Priority 2 Improvement Projects; and lastly, 
incorporating proposed service charge recommendations in the FY 2023-24 Budget and in the 
Proposition 218 Notification. 

Action:   No action required, informational item only. The Master Plan is being finalized and will 
be brought to the Board for adoption at an upcoming Board Meeting. 

 
8. Update on the Financial Impacts of COVID for Quarter Ending December 31, 2022: 

 

An update on the financial impacts of the COVID-19 Pandemic was provided by Director of 
Finance Pugh. At the end of December 2022, outstanding balances of $3,110,072 representing 
8,224 accounts, with sales of 874.1-acre feet, compared to September 2022, which had sales of 
2,177.9-acre feet with total outstanding balances of $5,379,765 representing 8,006 accounts. 
 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

5 January 17, 2023 

Total balances in for the quarter ending December 2022, that are greater than 30 days were 
$640,155, 20.58% of the outstanding balance, that is up, $126,754 from September, 2022. The 
Total outstanding balances are down $2,269,693 on decreased sales volume in December 
compared to September of 1,303.8-acre feet. We continue to watch, contact, and ultimately 
send lien letters which has been effective in getting our customers to pay. The District’s over 
30 day outstanding balance was up $127K, stated Mr. Pugh. 
 

Action:   No action required, informational item only. Staff will continue to monitor and report 
the results to the Board quarterly. 

 
9. Update on the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Finance Software Upgrade: 
 

The District currently uses Springbrook (on-premise) ERP software supplied by SBRK Finance 
Holdings, Inc (SBRK) which provides critical accounting functionality. The on-premise (housed 
on District servers) version of Springbrook features include utility billing, accounts payable, 
payroll, inventory, and financial reporting. SBRK has stopped providing any development of 
new software features to the on-premise version and is only providing upgrades in software 
functionality to the Cirrus (Cloud-based) version. District staff comprised of individuals from 
each department, who evaluated 5 different softwares based on criteria that is important to 
both customers and staff. Below is a list of the criteria that were evaluated: 
 

• Solutions for Allocations ─ A solution for billing, managing, and informing customers of their 
allocations during cutbacks is critical as California is currently experiencing multi-year 
drought conditions, especially with our PSAWR certified agricultural customers. 

• Solutions for Tracking Employee Training ─ District staff are required to take various types 
of training, for example, safety training, workplace certifications, and outside training. Each 
training has different frequencies, some are required annually or bi-annually and others are 
only required once. Tracking a staff of 70 full-time employees and a variety of different 
training requirements could be performed more efficiently with the proper software. 

• More robust Human Resources and Project management modules. 

• Application Program Interface ─ API is necessary to integrate with other recent software 
upgrades (i.e. Cityworks, WaterSmart, and Docusign). 

 

After a thorough evaluation of several different ERP products, staff decided to stay with 
Springbrook and upgrade to their new Cirrus Cloud platform, which will save an estimated 
$500,000 in capital funds in FY 2022-23. Ms. Velasquez was pleased to report that Springbrook 
has and will continue to make significant investments toward improving the new Cirrus platform. 
 

Staff reviewed the following platforms during the evaluation process: 

- Springbrook Cirrus – the cloud-based version of the District’s current ERP 

- Tyler Enterprise (used by Helix WD and San Dieguito WD) 

- Cogsdale (used by Yorba Linda WD) 

- Cayenta (used by Helix WD) 

- Tyler Incode (used by Yuima MWD and Rincon Del Diablo MWD) 
 

Total anticipated implementation costs for the Cirrus version total $28,913, compared to a 
quoted $500K to convert to Tyler Enterprise or the $2M to convert to Cayenta.  Under a three-
year contract, the anticipated annual recurring costs total $66,865 our current maintenance  



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

6 January 17, 2023 

costs to maintain the on-premise version total $40K, compared to the quoted $160K for Tyler 
Enterprise annual maintenance. Ms. Velasquez reminded the Board that $750K was already 
approved in the Capital Budget Allocation, which included $250K for staff time.  
 

Action:  No action required, informational item only. Staff will return to the Board to provide 
an update on the project and budget after the initial migration is completed.  

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S AGENDA 

 

10. General Information:  
 

The following general informational items were reported on by General Manager Arant: 
 

• Water Supply Conditions (State Water Project and Upper Colorado River Basin); and 

• California Reservoir Levels. 
  

Action: Informational item only, no action required. 

 
DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL’S AGENDA 
 

None. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AGENDA AND REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

 

11. Conduct of Board Meetings After the End of Emergency Order on February 28, 2023: 
 

Under the authority of AB 361, the District has been conducting hybrid Board Meetings 
(“Meetings”) since early 2020 due to the health and safety concerns associated with COVID-
19, stated General Manager Arant. Board Meetings have been held in a hybrid manner, with 
in-person and remote participation options (via WebEx) available for Board Members. At all 
times, Meetings have been conducted in compliance with the state Brown Act Open Meeting 
laws. General Counsel has also reviewed policies and procedures related to reopening the 
Board Meeting to allow for in-person public access.  
 

On October 17, 2022, Governor Newsom announced that the current state of the COVID-19 
emergency will remain in effect until February 28, 2023. After that time, or until another 
declared emergency, AB 2449 rules will be in effect to allow exceptions to the traditional Brown 
Act for virtual participation by Board members in Board meetings. As of January 1, 2023, three 
separate laws regulate the format of remote teleconference/video conference local 
government meetings: 1) the traditional Brown Act; 2) AB 361 Emergency Meetings, and 3) 
AB 2449 limited Specific Scenario rules.  
 

Mr. Arant reminded the Board that AB 361 provisions can extend to January 2024 if state and 
local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing and 
the Board would continue to make the necessary 30-day renewals of the findings necessary 
to hold hybrid meetings. If the Governor does not extend the COVID–19 Emergency Order, it 
will be difficult to make the findings required for AB 361; at which point the teleconference 
provisions would be governed by the standard (pre-pandemic) Brown Act teleconferencing 
rules or AB 2449. Under the Brown Act’s teleconferencing rules, remote participation is allowed 
if the remote location(s) is listed on the Board Agenda with the Board Member(s) remote 
location posted, the remote location(s) must be open to the public, and at least a quorum of 
the Board participating within the agency’s jurisdictional boundary. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

7 January 17, 2023 

AB 2449 allows for limited and highly conditioned hybrid participation based on findings 
of Just Cause or Emergency Circumstances. Just Cause remote participation can only be 
used twice in a calendar year. More generally, remote participation under AB 2449 cannot be 
used for more than three consecutive months or 20 percent of the Board’s meetings in a 
calendar year. There are also specific provisions for audio and visual aspects of remote 
participation as further described in the attached memo. Finally, a quorum of the Board must 
be physically present at a single location within the District’s boundary (e.g., the Board Room).  
 

Given the likely rescission of the Governor’s Emergency Order, and the limitations and 
complexities of the AB 2449 provisions, staff recommends the Board consider reverting to 
conducting its Meetings under the standard provisions of the Brown Act, with all Board 
Members physically present in the Board Room. Remote participation would be allowed under 
the traditional Brown Act teleconferencing rules where advertising, posting, and public 
participation at the remote location would be required.  Staff also recommended continuing to 
offer enhanced public participation options, such as broadcasting meetings on YouTube and 
allowing written comments and real-time telephonic participation, in an effort to enhance 
transparency and remove barriers for those unable to speak publicly at the meeting. 
 

Action: Upon motion by Ness, seconded by Ferro, and unanimously carried, motion to revert 
back to in-person Board Meetings was approved. 

 

12. San Diego LAFCO Special Districts Election – Nomination of Regular and Alternate 
Special District Members: 
 

As the Board is aware, the San Diego County Special Districts Advisory Committee 
(“Committee”) has two regular seats and one alternate seat on the Committee up for election. 
Attached is a memo from SDLAFCO regarding the elections and nomination process. It is 
anticipated that the mailed ballot election will be conducted in the March/April 2023 timeframe, 
as the current terms of office will expire on May 1, 2023. To be eligible to serve as Regular and 
Alternate Special District Representatives to SDLAFCO, individuals must be a member of a 
legislative body of an independent Special District, they must reside in San Diego County, and 
they may not be a member of a legislative body for a city or county government. 
 

Action:  After review and discussion, no nominations were made. General Manager Arant 
notified the Board that they have until February 24, 2023 to submit a nomination.  

 
CLOSED SESSIONS 
 

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider 
litigation, personnel matters, or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client 
privilege. Discussion of litigation is within the attorney-client privilege and may be held in                                      
closed session. Authority: Government Code Section 54956.9. 
 

 

14. A Closed Session was to be held pursuant to the following: 
 

• Government Code §54957 - Public Employee Performance Evaluation: 
Unrepresented Employee:       General Manager 

 

• Government Code §54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators: 
Agency Designated Representatives:  Board of Directors 

 Unrepresented Employee:                      General Manager 
 

Action: Agenda item moved to the February 6, 2023 Board Meeting. 



Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes 

 

8 January 17, 2023 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Action:  Upon motion by Ferro, seconded by Ness; motion passes unanimously, the Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Directors was adjourned at 3:42 p.m. 

 
 

ATTEST:       ATTEST: 
 

 
 
____________________________    _____________________________ 
Robert A. Polito, President                   Kirsten N. Peraino, Secretary 











































February 6, 2023 
 
 

TO:  Honorable President and Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Gary Arant, General Manager  
 

SUBJECT:  CORPORATE FACILITY NEEDS UPDATE – ANOTHER ALTERNATIVE 
  
 

PURPOSE: 
 

To update the Board on the Corporate Facility Needs Assessment and introduce an alternate 
concept for further consideration. 
 
 

SUMMARY: 
 

As the Board is aware, the District owns 32 acres of land generally located on the north side of 
Lilac Road, from Valley Center Road, westerly to Hunza Hill Court (see attached map). The land 
was purchased in 2005 for the future home of the Valley Center Municipal Water District 
(VCMWD) Corporate Facility, to replace the facility at 29300 Valley Center Road. Over the years 
of ownership, the development of the Lilac Road Property (Property) and the current Corporate 
Facility has been considered and discussed by the Board and staff, though the Property remains 
essentially as it was when purchased some 17 years ago.  
 

Staff feels it prudent to once again discuss this issue since the District’s corporate needs 
continue to grow and the existence and future development of the property has been 
discussed in the “public square” as a topic associated with rates and fee increases, with people 
suggesting, “if you need money just sell the (Lilac Road) property.” The public might also be 
questioning the prudence of the initial investment and not utilizing the property for its original 
purpose for a significant period of time.  
 

Finally, at this time, staff would like to introduce another development alternative for the 
Board’s consideration. 
 

Background 
 

The decision was made to purchase the Lilac Road Property after an extensive analysis of the 
District’s ultimate Corporate Facility needs (see “Valley Center Municipal Water District 
Corporate Needs Assessment, November 2000” attached) and the ability of the current facility 
to accommodate those needs. At that time, it was assessed that:  
 

• The projected population of the service area at build-out could be as high as 57,500 and 
the resulting employee number was projected at 120 would require a significant amount of 
new office space, equipment, and vehicle parking area;  

• The size of the existing property (then 6 acres) and the lack of access to conventional 
wastewater disposal requiring the retention of the septic disposal and septic reserve areas, 
would not afford enough land to accommodate the new requirements; and  

• There was no practical or acceptable ability to expand the existing site (bounded by Valley 
Center Rd to the west, San Diego County Public Works to the west, and a private property 
owner to the east was not interested in selling off a portion of their property to the District). 

 



2 

Given these factors, it was determined that the District needed to seek an alternative site. 
Several location alternatives were then evaluated, including the:  
 

1. Lake Turner Property – It was assessed that the Lake Turner Property was too remote 
and inaccessible for daily operations and public access. There could also be land use and 
regulatory issues associated with commercial/institutional development in the watershed 
area of the lake. 

2. Goodwin Parcel – 4 acres of privately- owned land adjacent to and the east of the current 
Corporate Facility parcel. As previously mentioned, the owners were not interested in a 
voluntary sales/purchase transaction and the Board expressed it would not support an 
Imminent Domain Action against a long-standing member of the community for the 
purpose of building a new Corporate Facility.  

3. Miller Rd Property (now Miller Plaza Development) – Development issues, such as 
significant grading and rock disposal were identified as a concern with the Miller Road 
Property; and  

4. Lilac Road Property – Though the Lilac Road Property was being sold as four parcels only, 
covered more land (32 acres) than the district needed, which was estimated at 12−15 acres, 
and had significant development limitations on one of the lots due to presence cultural 
artifact and biological resources, it was judged to be superior to the other three alternatives.  

 

Factors included in the 2000  Needs Assessment were:  
 

• Ready access to Lilac and Valley Center Roads, main arteries to the District service area;  

• Location essentially in the centroid of the District Service Area; 

• Potential to sell off any excess property deemed unnecessary to the District’s purposes; and  

• Potential for using the preservation of culturally sensitive areas as mitigation offset. 

• The Property was being marked for sale by a willing seller. 
 

With these factors considered, an analysis was done on the Lilac Road Property to identify 
potential development limitations due to cultural and biological resources, and the potential 
presence of toxic materials. The report confirmed that there was no evidence of toxic materials 
on the property and as well as the location of cultural (Native American Artifacts) and biological 
resources (Engelman Oaks) which had been previously documented and cataloged. An 
appraisal was performed setting the Fair Market Value at $1.5 million, and an offer was made 
and accepted by the ownership group. 
 

The Lilac Road Property has been held, protected, and maintained by the District in the period 
since the purchase. Various community groups have benefitted from the property, such as 
being used as unified command headquarters, staging and response area for the 2007 
Poomacha Fire, ongoing training for the VCFPD, Fire Safe Council Brush Chipping, the 
Western Days Parade, and most recently, the Western Days Festival itself. 
 

The Property has not been developed because of intervening factors. In somewhat rapid 
succession, the Great Recession of 2009, the Wanger Drought of 2009-12, and the 2015-17 
Drought impacted the District financially and drew focus to other priorities, such as maintaining 
the financial, operational, and infrastructure integrity of the District’s water and wastewater 
systems. 
 
 



3 

Since 2005 
 

Since 2005, several things had transpired to alter some of the factors and assumptions that 
led the District to purchase the Lila Road Property:  
 

• The 2008 General Plan Update by the County of San Diego reduced the Valley Center 
at-build-out population from 57,500 to just over 45,800, which changed some assumptions  
about ultimate employee, vehicle, and parking needs;  

• Along with the projected reduction in at-build out population, District adoption of various 
labor-saving technologies, AMR Meters, SCADA, and GIS led to a revision of ultimate 
staffing requirements in March 2017 from the original 120 down to 95 (see attached “Valley 
Center Municipal Water District Updated Corporate Needs Assessment, March 2017”); 

• The District’s purchase of just over one acre of land declared as surplus by the County 
of San Diego located between the Corporate Facility’s westerly boundary and School Bus 
Lane expanded to available Corporate Facility acreage from 6 to 7 acres;  

• Expansion of the Woods Valley Ranch Water Reclamation Facility included the capacity 
of the North and South Villages and the extension of the wastewater collection system to 
serve the District’s current Corporate Facility. Without the need for onsite wastewater 
disposal and preservation of a septic reserve area, this now made the entire newly 
expanded corporate property (7 acres) available for development. With the entire site 
available for development, this led to a re-examination of the suitability of the current 
property. 

 

These changes facilitated some revised thinking regarding ways to meet the District’s ultimate 
Corporate Facility needs. 
 
New Approach 

 

In 2017, Michael Kinoshita, Architect, was hired to examine this question: With the changed 
conditions and circumstances, could the District’s ultimate Corporate needs be accommodated 
by the current recently expanded property? Part of this approach was the thought that, given 
the then-current interest expressed through an offer to purchase one of the four parcels (March 
2016), the Lilac Road Property could be sold, and the proceeds used to fund a portion of the 
current site development.  
 

Mr. Kinoshita’s analysis revealed that: 
 

• If the District could secure another acre of land, it could build a new single-story, 15,000-
square-foot administrative structure, as well as new public and employee parking areas, 
and have adequate material storage and lay-down areas. However, this would require the 
extensive re-purposing of the property, including the demolition and re-construction of 
several existing and viable buildings and structures, including Mechanics Bay, Warehouse, 
and Equipment Covers. Again, this was based upon the addition of one acre to the existing 
site. 

• After revisiting the issue of land expansion, with no positive result, Mr. Kinoshita was 
asked to evaluate development on the existing site land area. His analysis revealed that it 
would require a two-story administrative structure and all the ADA considerations that 
entail, as well as extensive site repurposing with the demolition, relocation and 
reconstruction of existing structures and facilities as previously mentioned. Finally, vehicle 



4 

parking and material storage and lay-down areas would be constrained and require the 
development and use of additional offsite areas.  
 
Even though no investment was made in detailed cost estimating of the full cost of either 
sub-alternative (single-story/two-stories) which would have included the cost for demolition 
and reconstruction of several major buildings and structures, it was concluded that the 
study did not identify a clear way forward, so staff recommended to defer the issue until a 
future time.  
 

Where Does the Issue Stand Today?  
 

• The District Board Room, Engineering and Inspection staff, and Employee Lounge 
have still housed Manufactured Building, some dating back to the 1990s; 

•Even with a modest rate of employee growth, there are very limited options for 
accommodating additional employees needed to meet future needs, and additional 
office space, likely modular, will be needed at some point;  

•With pending CARB Advanced Clean Fleets regulations ultimately requiring on-sight 
charging infrastructure for the District Fleet, there will be a loss of ‘opportunistic” 
parking area (a truck here, two trucks there, three over there) and a need to increase 
areas dedicated to concentrated vehicle charging, further restricting useable laydown 
and material storage area; and  
 

Another Alternative 
 

In the original “Needs Assessment” it was concluded that having a single “campus” was 
the preferred alternative over having the Administrative/Engineering functions at a 
separate location from the Operations and Facilities function. In the interest of preserving 
day-to-day operational coordination and organizational unity, that was identified as the 
ideal and preferred solution. However, it is a solution that may never be realized due to the 
economic realities of financing and then building an entirely new Corporate Facility, with 
the required administrative, and operational buildings (Crew Rooms, Pump Shop, 
Mechanics Bay, Warehouse, material and fuel management systems, paving, likely 
decorative fencing, and lighting). Further, there are significant land use challenges to 
permitting outside vehicle parking and material and chemical storage uses, versus gaining 
land use approval for essentially what would be an administrative office complex.  
 

In conceptual terms, the new alternative is to evaluate the cost and feasibility of 
constructing a new administrative complex on the northwest parcel (see attached map). 
The area containing the biological and cultural resources (the easterly portion of the 
northwest parcel and the entire northeast parcel) would remain under the ownership of the 
District to facilitate the protection of those resources which is the legal obligation of the 
agency. The front two parcels to the southwest and southeast representing 15 acres, 
including the pie-shaped portions of those parcels across Lilac Road to the south and 
bifurcated by Betsworth Road could declare surplus and sell at fair market value, with the 
proceeds used to partially offset the cost of developing the new administrative complex.  
 

Next Steps 
 

To fully evaluate this option, an update of the earlier work done on building a new 
Administrative Complex would be needed as a baseline. Also, a feasibility analysis and 
high-level cost estimate for developing a stand-alone Administrative Complex at the Lilac 





BETSW
ORTH

RD

V
A

L
L

E
Y

C
E

N
T

E
R

R
D

LILAC
RD

BLUEBERRY HILL LN

APN: 18623116
Acres: 7.28

APN: 18623115
Acres: 8.27

APN: 18623118
Acres: 8.26

APN: 18623117
Acres: 8.47

Right of Way

Parcels

VCMWD Site

/

VALLEY CENTER
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
VALLEY CENTER
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Proposed Corporate Facility Site 1/5/2023
Y:\GISProjects\DistrictMaps\LilacCorporateFacility\LilacCorporateFacility.aprx

Source: SANGIS, SANDAG, VCMWD

0 150 30075
Feet



BETSW
ORTH

RD

V
A

L
L

E
Y

C
E

N
T

E
R

R
D

LILAC
RD

BLUEBERRY HILL LN

APN: 18623116
Acres: 7.28

APN: 18623115
Acres: 8.27

APN: 18623118
Acres: 8.26

APN: 18623117
Acres: 8.47

Right of Way

Parcels

VCMWD Site

/

VALLEY CENTER
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
VALLEY CENTER
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Proposed Corporate Facility Site 1/10/2023
Y:\GISProjects\DistrictMaps\LilacCorporateFacility\LilacCorporateFacility.aprx

Source: SANGIS, SANDAG, VCMWD

0 150 30075
Feet







































 

 

 

 
Agenda Item No. 7 – General Information  
 
 
February 6, 2023 
 
 
PowerPoint Presentation Only (no board report) 

 


	February 6, 2023 Agenda
	1. Make Findings Necessary to Continue Teleconferenced Board Meetings Pursuant to AB 361
	2. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting Held Tuesday, January 17, 2023
	3. Audit Demands
	4. Request Approval of Change Order No. 3 to the Construction Contract with GSE and Amendment No. 14 to the Professional Services Agreement with HDR for the Orchard Run Lift Station Project
	5. Review Corporate Facility Needs Assessment Update and Preview of New Alternate Concept
	6. San Diego County Water Authority’s Board Meeting Summary
	7. General Information

